
CASTLETON AREA FORUM
Tuesday 4 June 2019 at 7.00pm

Castleton Community Centre, Manchester Road,
Castleton, Rochdale

AGENDA

1.  Introductions and Apologies/Code of Conduct 

2.  Minutes of last meeting/Matters arising/Updates 

3.  Greater Manchester Police 
including update from PACT meetings

4.  Tetrosyl 

5.  Open Forum 

6.  Reports 
 Castleton EC Residents
 Friends of Carnegie Castleton
 Friends of Castleton Station/Support The Oldham, Rochdale and 

Manchester Rail Lines
 St Gabriel’s
 Rochdale Township in Bloom

7.  Any Other Business 

8.  Date and time of next meeting 
Monday 9 September 2019 at 7pm
Castleton Community Centre

Public Document Pack



Rochdale Township Area Forums
Code of Conduct

It is established by and for the Rochdale Township Area Forums that the following 
code of conduct will govern the behaviour of their members.  The code of conduct will 
be enforced by the Chair of this meeting.

Conduct at meetings
Members will at all times observe accepted practice while taking part in discussions 
to:

• Be courteous to each other and support and assist other members in finding
the best possible solution to problems being discussed

• Allow each other the opportunity to speak and comment
• Attempt as far as possible to stick to the agenda and assist each other to

reach effective conclusions
• Operate within the constitution where applicable
• Aggression, violence, threats, harassment, intimidation and other disruptive

behaviour in the forum will not be tolerated
• The term ‘members’ applies to all those present at the meeting

Confidentiality
• Members will refrain from mentioning specific individual cases which may

cause embarrassment or identification of an individual
• Any information or item shared that is of a confidential nature will not be

disclosed to anyone else apart from members of the Forum in order to allow
the business of the meeting to proceed.

Dignity at meetings
• All those who attend Forum meetings have the right to be treated with dignity

and respect regardless of their race, colour, ethnic or national origin,
nationality, gender, marital status, age, sexuality, religion or any other matter
which causes people to be discriminated against

• The meeting will do all that is in its power to oppose all forms of harassment
and bullying

Individual Members
• Should disclose any personal interest that they consider may affect or

influence their approach to the matter being discussed
• Must show respect in all their dealings by observing reasonable standards

and courtesy, and by not seeking to take unfair advantage by virtue of their
position

Political Affiliation
• Even though individual members may be affiliated to/or be members of a

political party, they may not represent a political party in their role as
individual members of this Forum

• Elected Members attending meetings outside the ward they represent may be
allowed to speak, at the discretion of the Chair.

Breach of Code of Conduct
• If anyone attending the Forum meeting does not abide by the code of

conduct, the Chair will have the discretion to decide on an appropriate course
of action.  The Chair may either issue a warning, ask the person to withdraw
from a particular agenda item or exclude that person from the meeting.

• Where a person is asked to leave a meeting, the Chair will have the discretion
to decide whether or not that person is welcome to attend future meetings.

• The Chair at his/her discretion, may close the meeting if he/she deems it
necessary Page 2

Agenda Item 1



CASTLETON AREA FORUM

Tuesday 12 March 2019
Castleton Community Centre, Manchester Road,

Castleton, Rochdale

MINUTES

Present: M. Magner (Chair) and approx. 17 members of the public

Councillors: J. Hornby, B. Sheerin and A. Rashid

Officers: R. Hudson (Townships, Rochdale Council), N. Rogers (Public Protection, Rochdale 
Council) and PC M. Farmer (GMP)

Apologies: Apologies from 5 members of the public were announced and noted on the evening

1. INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES/CODE OF CONDUCT
Introductions were made and all were welcomed to the meeting.  The code of conduct was 
circulated.  All attendees were asked to abide by the code for the duration of the meeting.

2. MINUTES OF LAST MEETING/MATTERS ARISING/UPDATES
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 4 December 2018 were approved and the following 
updates given.

Cherrington Drive road surface
Potholes have now been repaired but a resident reported that there is still subsidence to the 
pavement and roadway on the first bend of the road.
Action 1: Township Officer to raise the issue again with Highways to inspect, assess and 
carry out remedial repairs if needed.

Royle Road/Gypsy Lane Corner sewerage smell
Residents reported this issue has now been resolved and thanks were expressed to the Council for 
their swift action.

Additional items
The chair agreed to an additional item on the agenda of ‘Current Air Pollution Monitoring, Greater 
Manchester Clean Air Plan and Clean Air Zone Categories’ presented by Nicola Rogers, Head of 
Public Protection, Rochdale Borough Council.

3. GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE
The Castleton PACT (Police and Communities Together) meeting was incorporated into the forum.  
The local ward Councillors gave their apologies for the last PACT stating they were unfortunately on 
other business but always try and attend.

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Forthcoming PACT dates for 2019 are as follows:

Castleton Community Centre (7-8pm)
9 April 2019 2 July 2019 22 October 2019
7 May 2019 27 August 2019 19 November 2019
4 June 2019 24 September 2019 17 December 2019

PC Farmer gave an update on the crime statistics since the last forum in December 2018.  She 
reported there have been 14 burglary dwellings, 22 thefts from motor vehicle and 3 thefts of motor 
vehicle.

The forum previously raised concerns over speeding on Manchester Road and Queensway which 
GMP have tried to reduce.  A speeding operation was carried out last week resulting in several 
tickets issued.  Highest recorded speed was 47mph in a 30mph zone.  Tickets were also issued for 
use of mobile phones and non-use of seatbelts.  Another multi-agency operation ‘Considerate’ will 
be run when resources are available again; Castleton is next on the list for this initiative.  The 
operation will involve other agencies and address the issues of speeding, no vehicle documentation, 
not wearing seat belts, use of mobile phones and vehicle worthiness.  A number plate awareness 
event also took place, which was well attended and will be run again.

Complaints concerning youths using the area at the top of Cowm Top Lane as a race track have 
been monitored recently by GMP with officers speaking to offenders.  The matter is still on the radar 
of officers on the later shifts.

Complaints made at the last forum about vehicles driving on to Kingsland Common have been 
addressed with the installation of an extension of the knee rail around the lower points of the 
common to prevent vehicles driving on to it.

Residents expressed concerns about speeding on Royle Barn Road.  GMP stated they would put 
the area on the next speed operation list.

All residents were reminded to be aware of home and vehicle security, not to leave valuables or 
presents on show, keep lights and alarms on and make it look like someone is home.

PC Farmer stressed to residents the importance of reporting all matters and their attendance at 
PACTs in order to validate the need for support and necessary resources within GMP to be 
allocated.  The 101 number is a national line and matters can also be reported on GMP’s website.  
The chair gave thanks to GMP for their efforts and attendance.

4. CURRENT AIR POLLUTION MONITORING, GREATER MANCHESTER CLEAN AIR 
PLAN AND CLEAN AIR ZONE CATEGORIES
The chair agreed to an additional item on the agenda of ‘Current Air Pollution Monitoring, Greater 
Manchester Clean Air Plan and Clean Air Zone Categories’ – presented by Nicola Rogers, Head of 
Public Protection, Rochdale Borough Council.  The information presented ties in with the ongoing 
concerns of local residents about the increased levels of air pollution, predominantly around the 
Royle Barn Road area.  Nicola explained there are three testing sites within Castleton in the 
following locations; Cherrington Drive, Trows Lane and Manchester Road.  Questions were asked 
about pollution increasing since the motorway was widened and whether the location of the 
monitoring tube should be better positioned on Royle Barn Road.

Documents were circulated to those in attendance and residents can access data on the following 
website links:

Air quality monitoring results available at https://www.cleanairgm.com/what-we-are-doing/air-quality-
reports

Page 4

https://www.cleanairgm.com/what-we-are-doing/air-quality-reports
https://www.cleanairgm.com/what-we-are-doing/air-quality-reports


Declared Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) details available at https://uk-
air.defra.gov.uk/aqma/maps.

5. OPEN FORUM
Air pollution
A recent Government report on air pollution highlighted two areas in Castleton, namely Manchester 
Road and Edinburgh Way, as exceeding their limit for Nitrogen Oxides which is a concern to the 
community.  Motorways are exempt.  The Association of Greater Manchester Authorities are looking 
at the problem overall and Councillor Sheerin will raise the issue at their next group meeting, 
together with the impact of increasing use of wood burners also with Rochdale Council’s 
representative on the Combined Authorities.  Local ward Councillors advised residents to voice their 
concerns within this period of preliminary consultation.

Countryside Proposed Housing Development
Resident raised concerns about a leaflet from Countryside Properties sent to residents in the Royle 
Road area regarding a proposed housing development of approx. 250 houses/apartments to be built 
on the former brownfield Dunlop site.  A resident has enquired with the Planning Department who 
advised the application is only an outline one at present.  Concerns were raised about the access, 
parking facilities and additional pressure on the infrastructure of local schools/doctors, etc. in the 
area.  Councillor Sheerin also highlighted to residents other potential future development sites in the 
ward including the former Carcraft site (brownfield site), land behind houses on Alder Road, land to 
the rear of the playing fields of Castleton Primary School and also the land behind Leander Drive 
(greenfield site).

Tetrosyl
Councillor Sheerin raised the matter again and requested the item to be added to the agenda for 
future forums.  Concerns are continually raised about the fact that the HSE has still not granted the 
company a certificate of compliance for hazardous substance consent.  Another area of concern is 
the storage of chemicals which borders the adjoining wall to the Soccer Factory building next door 
of which the HSE had requested the storage chamber to be sited away from the wall.  It appears to 
residents that the factory are operating now at an ‘insurable risk’ and lower level of storage and 
residents expressed frustration at the fact that no one is aware of what level this is.
Action 2: Township Officer to add this item to future agendas.

Chesham Avenue
A resident requested an inspection to the area outside the park as although some potholes have 
been repaired, there are still problems in the road.
Action 3: Township Officer to ask Highways again to inspect, assess and carry out remedial 
repairs if needed.

6. REPORTS
Castleton EC Residents
No update.

Friends of Carnegie Castleton
Update provided to the forum.  Friends of Carnegie moved into the old library as formal tenants on 1 
February 2019 and they are gradually equipping the office.  A superb picture of Andrew Carnegie is 
in pride of place on the wall and there has been donations of desks, cupboards, chairs and a table, 
along with cups and saucers, etc.  The first thing to display will be Andrew Carnegie's biography, 
along with pictures of his birthplace, and some details of his ancestry.  There will also be a section 
on Castleton's industrial and military history.  If anyone wants to join the group, membership is £2 
per year.  The building is looking superb thanks to the 'Crewe Crew' that are carrying out fantastic 
work.

If anyone belongs to a group that is looking for a meeting venue, or if you have family history in 

Page 5

https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/aqma/maps
https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/aqma/maps


Castleton which you would like to share, please call in on Tuesdays or Wednesdays between 10am 
- 3pm to discuss.

Friends of Castleton Station/Support the Oldham, Rochdale & Manchester Rail Lines/East 
Lancs Railway
No update.

St. Gabriel’s
The Dick Whittington Pantomime was a success.

Rochdale Township in Bloom
No update.

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS
No further matters raised.

8. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Tuesday 4 June 2019 at 7pm in Castleton Community Centre.

Page 6


	Agenda
	1 Introductions and Apologies/Code of Conduct
	2 Minutes of last meeting/Matters arising/Updates

